

Unitaid Executive Board Meeting 39th Session 15-16 December 2021 Organized via videoconference

Agenda item 3

Minutes of the 38th Session of the Executive Board 16-18 June 2021

Organised via videoconference

For Information	For Review and Advice	For Approval	\boxtimes
-----------------	-----------------------	--------------	-------------

Table of Contents

Exe	cutive Summary	3
1.	Opening remarks from the Chair	4
2.	Agenda of the EB38 meeting	4
3.	Minutes from previous meeting: EB37, 9-10 December 2020	4
4.	Report from the Executive Director	4
5. the	Report and recommendations from the Finance and Accountability Committee (FAC) and from joint FAC/PSC meeting	
6.	CLOSED SESSION for Board Members and Alternates	5
7. repo	Presentation of the preliminary findings of the External Review of Unitaid Strategy 2017-2021 ort by ITAD	
8.	Update on Strategy 2022-2026 development	6
9.	Unitaid and Global Public Goods	7
10.	Report of the Governance Working Group	8
11.	Report from the Chair of the Proposal Review Committee	9
12.	Proposal Review Committee Replenishment	9
13. port	Portfolio Performance including strategic and operational KPIs and impact of COVID-19 onti	
14.	List of participants	12

Executive Summary

The Board Members expressed appreciation for how Unitaid has been able to play a central role in the COVID-19 response and at the same time maintain focus on the core portfolio, stating that this achievement is a testament to the hard work of Unitaid Secretariat staff and the value of the Unitaid model.

The Board adopted the audited financial statements for 2020, the flexibility to utilize the overhead cost recovery to continue the short-term staffing arrangements to support the COVID-related work and the increase of the allocation to the African Countries Constituency for 2021.

The final External Review report will be shared with the Board and the Unitaid Secretariat on 7 July. In mid-July the Itad review team, the PSC and members of the Unitaid Secretariat will participate in a co-creation workshop to discuss the external review report findings, draw lessons based on evidence and agree on proposed recommendations.

Regarding the development of the new Strategy, Board Members highlighted the need for Unitaid to keep a strong focus on the three pandemics and equitable access in the next strategy.

The Board recognized this unique opportunity of the 'Global Public Good' discussion and the increased attention Unitaid has been gaining and supported the organization's efforts to continue to raise awareness and visibility around its work and public health impact. Members felt that Unitaid is particularly well-placed to respond to the growing need for the tools for fighting COVID-19 to make them accessible to the populations that need them.

The GWG recommendations were not finalized and further discussion of the GWG was needed. All countries occupying individual Executive Board (EB) Seats were invited to formally notify the Chair of GWG, by 15 October 2021, whether they are willing to share their Seat with another existing sovereign Board Member or a new donor country.

The report of the Chair of the Proposal Review Committee (PRC) highlighted an exceptionally busy first half of the year with 54% more time investment as compared to the same period of the previous year. The time dedicated to the COVID proposal and grant reviews increased by 62% and the time for the review of regular proposals and UnitaidExplore applications increased by 50%.

The Board appointed Ms Judit Rius Sanjuan as intellectual property expert and Mr Nelson Otwoma as community demand generation expert of the Proposal Review Committee (PRC) for the period July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Board Members congratulated the Secretariat for an excellent, comprehensive and clear portfolio performance report. They recognized the high quality of grants' one pagers, a good way to present the direction & challenges of each project. The Board valued Unitaid's work on diagnostics and therapeutics grants to address Covid crisis, recognized the importance of UnitaidExplore and the work dedicated to global oxygen supplier's cooperation.

1. Opening remarks from the Chair

The Chair highlighted some changes in the global health architecture that have increased the visibility of Unitaid's work, e.g. the active involvement in the Access to COVID-19 Tools Accelerator (ACT-A). She also recognized the trends towards funding volatility and noted the still growing number of global health needs within Unitaid's mandate. While additional resources for ACT-A work are expected, additional sources of funding for the core funding need to be explored. The next Strategy will need to reflect these changes and challenges. In addition, such demanding context requires Unitaid to sharpen and refine even further its prioritization framework and tools.

New Board Members and Alternate Board Members were welcomed to the meeting.

2. Agenda of the EB38 meeting

The Board adopted the agenda of the meeting (UNITAID/EB38/2021/1/REV2).

3. Minutes from previous meeting: EB37, 9-10 December 2020

The Board adopted the minutes of the 37th Executive Board (EB) meeting of December 2020 (UNITAID/EB38/2021/2).

4. Report from the Executive Director

The Executive Director highlighted the significant challenges Unitaid has faced since the last report to the Board, the progress the organization has been able to make despite the current context and the opportunities he sees going forward.

The pandemic is ongoing with different dynamics in different regions and it is difficult to predict future developments. We are seeing a direct impact on individuals affected by the virus, mortality but also challenges accessing healthcare. The pandemic is also having a profound impact on economies and has put funding at risk. Despite progress over the last year in responding to COVID-19, there is significant inequity despite progress in Lower Middle Income Countries (LMICs). There are also challenges with country preparedness. Unitaid is looking at ways to support countries, including how the organization can approach test and treat when treatment becomes available, as well as continued work on oxygen which remains a significant gap exposed by the pandemic. At the same time, internally, Unitaid is focused on ensuring the resilience of its core activities, ensuring funding for key priorities and managing staff workload and overall wellbeing.

Despite these challenges Unitaid has forged even stronger engagement under ACT-A and with its grant implementers. Earlier this year Unitaid updated its ACT-A strategy and developed a related investment plan. Unitaid has also used the last six months to further simplify grant management and leverage its increased visibility to support broader engagement in resource mobilization. Going forward the organization will work to strengthen the donor relationships in the context of the COVID-19 response to enhance core funding.

In line with his report, the Executive Director briefed the Board on progress against the five key priorities set out for him by the Board at the end of last year: i) Reinforce and manage our portfolio; ii) Engage in the COVID-19 response; iii) Develop Unitaid's Strategy for 2022-26; iv) Mobilize additional resources and leverage partners and v) Enhance staff engagement and well-being.

The Board thanked the Executive Director for the comprehensive report and thanked the Secretariat for their extraordinary work over the past six months in difficult circumstances. They noted that progress towards the Executive Director's priorities are on track despite challenges. The Board Members expressed appreciation for how Unitaid has been able to play a central role in the COVID-19 response and at the same time maintain focus on the core portfolio, stating that this achievement is a testament to the hard work of Unitaid Secretariat staff and the value of the Unitaid model. They commended the Executive Director for his focus on staff well-being and the various measures being taken. Finally, the Board complemented the organization for its carbon footprint assessment, noting its innovation in the context of the global health architecture.

5. Report and recommendations from the Finance and Accountability Committee (FAC) and from the joint FAC/PSC meeting

The Board noted the report from 27th meeting of the Finance and Accountability Committee, and its recommendations (UNITAID/EB38/2021/5).

a) Financial performance 2020

The Board adopted the audited financial statements for 2020 (UNITAID/EB38/2021/R1). The Board noted that a clean audit opinion from external auditors was received for 2020. There were three recommendations for the 2020 audit which will be addressed by the Secretariat in 2021.

b) Requested flexibility to manage ACT-A resources

In the UNITAID/EB38/2021/R2 the Board adopted the requested flexibility to utilize the overhead cost recovery to continue the short-term staffing arrangements to support the COVID-related work.

c) African countries budget

The Board adopted (UNITAID/EB38/2021/R3) the increase of the allocation to the African Countries Constituency for 2021 to cover the cost of reinforcing the representation of all regions of African countries.

6. CLOSED SESSION for Board Members and Alternates

7. Presentation of the preliminary findings of the External Review of Unitaid Strategy 2017-2021 report by ITAD

The Board Chair called for a forward-looking perspective for Unitaid's next strategy, including the significant changes provoked by the pandemic. The future strategy must build on, and move beyond, the organization's current strategy. She noted some challenging questions related to the organization's mandate on the three diseases, how Unitaid defines its portfolio and works with middle income countries and how the organization can better engage with specific stakeholders, including governments and civil society.

Itad made a presentation on its analysis and preliminary findings which were framed under three overarching questions (To what extent is Unitaid's strategy focusing on the right things? How well is the strategy being operationalized? To what extent is the strategy achieving the right results?) and five areas (relevance, coherence, efficiency, effectiveness and equity).

The Board acknowledged that the outputs of the external review are still preliminary and only based on half of the data collected. They noted that many findings sounded familiar and called for more information on the specific results the Itad team found based on a more detailed synthesis of the various data they collected.

Various aspects of risk were discussed including Unitaid's level of risk tolerance. Regarding the question of Unitaid's approach being risk averse, the Executive Director highlighted a nuanced approach to risk management. He noted that engaging in the three diseases often has less risk as this is an area where there are large donors, longstanding partnerships and scale-up partners. The other areas, such as COVID-19, Hepatitis C Virus (HCV), and Reproductive, Maternal, New-born and Child Health (RMNCH), are relatively new areas for Unitaid and have a different landscape of donors and partners. The Board Members also noted trade-offs, for example in managing risk and enabling speed and agility and agreed that it is important to discern between risk in the context of how the Secretariat manages its grant portfolio versus the level of risk the organization is willing to take in the areas for investment.

The Board Members discussed that Unitaid does not itself scale-up innovations but creates the conditions for scale-up. They agreed it was important to clarify this further amongst the Members to ensure a shared understanding. They emphasized the need for introduction and scale-up of products to be sustained in the long term, not just as temporary solutions.

Regarding evaluations of Unitaid grants ten to fifteen years after their implementation, the Board questioned if this is a realistic expectation and how common this is amongst other global health players. Regarding Unitaid's impact, the Executive Director called on Itad to look at the Global Fund 's report on market shaping. He noted that many of the examples are closely connected to the work of Unitaid and provide evidence that could respond to the question of Unitaid's impact over the long term.

The final evaluation report will be shared with the Board and the Unitaid Secretariat on 7 July. In mid-July the Itad review team, the PSC and members of the Unitaid Secretariat will participate in a cocreation workshop to discuss the external review report findings, draw lessons based on evidence and agree on proposed recommendations.

8. Update on Strategy 2022-2026 development

The Secretariat's presentation provided an update on the strategy development process to date, including emerging findings and directions from the first phase of the process as well as the next steps going forward.

The initial phase of the strategy development will be ending in the next few weeks. During this phase, the Secretariat conducted several internally focused analyses on Unitaid's strengths, weaknesses and gaps, as well as external analyses of the global context and the impact of emerging trends on the organisation. Extensive consultations have taken place with the Executive Board Members, the Secretariat staff and with external partners. Outcomes from the Secretariat's analyses will be reviewed considering final findings from the external review.

The next phase of the strategy development will focus on shaping the next strategy and includes the development of Unitaid's vision and strategic direction. This process will be highly interactive and build on an external review workshop with the PSC/EB in July as well as a retreat in the autumn, in addition

to scheduled touchpoints in October and December. The Secretariat aims to have a skeleton of the new strategy by the end of the year, for alignment with the EB in December, and to develop the different components of the strategy in 2022.

Going forward into this next phase, the Secretariat will be exploring several themes, including developing Unitaid's prominence and leadership in shaping the global response, building alliances to deliver on its objectives and engage more meaningfully with countries and communities, ensuring its investments not only improve the health of patients, but also improve the care experience and overall health system beyond immediate disease outcomes. The Secretariat will also consider the different roles it plays in HIV, TB, malaria, maternal and child health as well as COVID-19 and convey these more clearly around a specific investment approach. Finally, it will explore opportunities to drive the portfolio with a higher level impact intent, for instance by articulating the Area for Intervention (AfI) targets upfront.

The Board Members highlighted the need for Unitaid to keep a strong focus on the three pandemics and equitable access in the next strategy. They recognized that developing the framework and process for filtering and prioritizing investments will be important. The Board Members emphasized uncertainty in the current funding landscape and recommended that the Secretariat gives due consideration to how this may impact resource mobilization under the next strategy. Several important themes were brought forward for consideration by the Secretariat, including the role of technology interventions, the importance of country engagement and dialogue and the need for increased cooperation in supporting local production.

9. Unitaid and Global Public Goods

The Board Members were invited to consider how Unitaid's commitment to equitable access fits within current and recent high-level discussions regarding Global Public Goods. The COVID-19 pandemic has brought increased attention and interest to the issue of Global Public Goods on a level that previously was not thought possible, with the United States calling for patent sharing for vaccines and the G7 declaration recognizing the positive impact of voluntary licensing and technology transfer on the pandemic response, as well as highlighting Unitaid and MPP's particular role in expanding access and ensuring a more equitable pandemic response.

The Chair asked the Board Members to reflect on how Unitaid could best leverage this opportunity in which many around the world are calling for exactly what Unitaid has been delivering to the public health landscape since its foundation. This moment is particularly relevant as Unitaid is in the process of developing its strategy for the 2022-2026 period.

The Board Members recognized this unique opportunity and the increased attention Unitaid has been gaining and supported the organization's efforts to continue to raise awareness and visibility around its work and public health impact. The Board Members felt that Unitaid is particularly well-placed to respond to the growing need for the tools for fighting COVID-19 that are accessible to the populations that need them. Some Board Members raised concerns on the lack of consensus around the term 'Global Public Good' in a way that leads to loose accountability around these efforts.

The Secretariat shared some recent examples of efforts to harness the increased interest including the hosting of joint briefings with MPP and donor countries and plans for continued collaboration with

MPP to support licensing and technology transfer not only for the manufacturing of vaccines but also for promising new treatments currently in development.

The Board Members shared suggestions on the following opportunities for further development: the potential for expanding policy and advocacy work to help create more equitable pathways to tools earlier in the development processes in addition to investing in the course correction downstream; convening or facilitating local production and manufacturing of products; supporting greater knowledge sharing through technology access pools and waivers; additional investment in platform technologies that have the potential for wider-reaching impact; and taking a more holistic approach to engender broader impact across health systems and issues.

10. Report of the Governance Working Group

The report of the Governance Working Group (GWG) focused on its work relating to the criteria for an expansion of governance structure.

The report reminded on the criteria adopted by the Board during its 37th meeting, in June 2019, through Res. EB32/2019/R9; as well as the creation, through Res. EB37/2020/R4, of a temporary, non-voting, shared Board Seat and the invitation for Japan to occupy this Seat, Res. EB37/2020/R5.

Based on these resolutions, the Working Group organized two workshops, on 24 March and 20 April, and held one meeting on 19 May.

The GWG recommendations were not finalized and further discussion of the GWG was needed. One of the suggested approaches involves sharing individual country Board seat with another existing sovereign Board Member or a new donor country on voluntary basis, founded on the principle of likemindedness, thus keeping the EB small whilst bringing in new interests. This approach would enable response to Japan in December 2021, whilst allowing GWG to continue work in 2022 to establish new Board Seats.

The creation of two additional shared EB Seats with voting rights could be envisaged: a Donor Seat and Implementer's Seat to accommodate additional countries. The Donor Seat eligibility could involve specific time-bound financial contribution to Unitaid's core budget. The Implementer's Seat could accommodate Lower Middle-Income Countries (LMICs) with Unitaid projects; high burden of the three diseases; significant role producing/scaling up health products or market shaping; and strong stance on access to medicines.

A clarification was provided that Seoul criteria apply to all seats and indicate the Board's willingness to create new seats.

All countries occupying individual EB Seats were invited to formally notify the Chair of the GWG, by 15 October 2021, whether they are willing to share their Seat with another existing sovereign Board Member or a new donor country.

The Board Members noted the need for a governance retreat to elaborate the criteria for accepting new Board Members. The Chair of GWG would share the proposed GWG workplan by the end of the month.

11. Report from the Chair of the Proposal Review Committee

The report of the Chair of the Proposal Review Committee (PRC) highlighted an exceptionally busy first half of the year with 54% more time investment as compared to the same period of the previous year. The time dedicated to the COVID proposal and grant reviews increased by 62% and the time for the review of regular proposals and UnitaidExplore applications increased by 50%.

The two approved Unitaid Explore Pediatric Formulations investments represent high strategic value and good potential for impact. The COVID RfP proposals are of strategic value, however several concerns were highlighted including the risks linked to capacity of health systems, need for clearer linkages with the first wave of COVID investments in existing grants, the need to consider synergies between a negative test result and an opportunity to vaccinate.

The number of regular GAD reviews and the number of UnitaidExplore contractual arrangements in the first half of 2021 almost equalled the numbers for the full year 2020. COVID-19 extension reviews require an excellent planning and represent a significant time commitment, but the response was provided in less than 48 hours' time. The PRC Team endorsed the Secretariat's analysis assessed the COVID investments to represent a strategic, fast, efficient and coordinated response to the COVID-19 situation.

The progress report on the implementation of the UnitaidExplore mechanism indicated targeted outreach produced an additional 37% of applicants and good overall quality compared to the first call last year. Advancing of the contract materials and adding them to the application process has contributed to a more standardized Pitch-day, adding emphasis on the access conditions of the health products, developing an interim commercialization plan and addressing the due diligence issues as early as possible. Innovator ecosystem verifications and engagement of the Civil Society Organization (CSO) networks early in the process will help expand the applicant base from LMICs.

The Board Members noted that the engagement of the PRC in the development of AfIs is very limited. Conflict of Interest considerations are important for determining whether a partner can be consulted. Clarifications were made on the equity aspect of Unitaid Explore, the reporting process of Unitaid Explore implementation and feedback to proponents.

12. Proposal Review Committee Replenishment

During its 35th session in June 2020, the Board approved renewal of the PRC Chair's appointment for the period June 2020- June 2023 and the renewal of the appointment of the current PRC Members for the period December 2020 – June 2022. These renewals were done based on the rationale for aligning the next PRC replenishment with the needs of the next Strategy. The full PRC replenishment would therefore be launched in January 2022.

The PRC Chair had proposed the replenishment of community demand generation and intellectual property expertise of the PRC Members based on the needs assessment and considering the discussion at the last Board meetings. The process steps had been agreed between the Chairs of the PRC and PSC, based on the PRC TOR and the learnings from the previous replenishment occasion.

The PRC Member selection process led by the two Chairs involved the review by the Secretariat, cross-checking by the PRC Chair and a joint meeting of both Chairs to agree on the screen-out and the first choice and second choice candidates from the shortlisted pool.

Candidates had to demonstrate exceptionally strong knowledge or more than 20 years of experience in their main expertise area. Long term employment as a staff member or full-time consultant with a Unitaid grantee (on an active grant) that is current or recent (over the past 6 months) constituted criteria for exclusion of the candidates. Long term, part-time consultancy agreements with grantee organizations were analysed on case by case basis, to ensure that the potential benefits from accepting the candidate outweigh the need to manage any eventual conflicts of interests.

Four applications from interested experts had been received: two for the main area of expertise in intellectual property and two in the main area of expertise in community demand generation. All four candidates were retained based on a meticulous conflict of interest assessment.

The Chairs recommended approval of Judit Rius for the area of expertise in intellectual property and Nelson Otwoma for the area of community demand generation. Violeta Ross would be included in the list of alternate appointees for the latter position.

The Board Members inquired on the nationality of the candidates, gender and regional balance in the PRC and the specific reasons for the first and second choice candidates with the primary area of expertise in community demand generation. It was clarified that both Nelson Otwoma and Violeta Ross have the required expertise in the main area of expertise, and both are former Board Members having represented the Communities delegation, and the choice of Nelson Otwoma was based on his larger scope of coverage of areas of expertise. In addition, the Communities delegation had issued a support letter for the candidature of Nelson Otwoma. The Board also noted the difficulty of finding the IP experts that would not be conflicted and the good quality of the recommended candidate.

The Board Adopted the resolution UNITAID/EB38/2021/R4 appointing two Issue-Specific PRC Members for the period July 2021 to 30 June 2022 as follows:

- Ms Judit Rius Sanjuan with primary expertise in intellectual property; and
- Mr Nelson Otwoma with primary expertise in community demand generation.

In addition, the Executive Board approved the inclusion of Ms Violeta Ross in the list of alternative appointees for the PRC.

13. Portfolio Performance including strategic and operational KPIs and impact of COVID-19 onthe portfolio

The Board heard about key highlights from the Unitaid active portfolio, its evolution, performance and challenges, with a specific focus on Covid-19 Impact on core grants and management of Covid-19 dedicated grants. From 2019 to 2020, Unitaid showed an increase in both the number of projects and the number of project implementers. The grant portfolio has now a similar financial value compared to 2019, even if the number of the new projects has increased. This is mainly because the new Covid-related projects are of lower budgetary value than other core grants: 14 Covid-19 grants represent less than 5% of the portfolio funding.

The Secretariat highlighted an unprecedented rise in workload, with the need for the staff to adapt to important changes and step up collectively. The Unitaid team's work has been well orchestrated and remains strong despite the challenges brought about by the Covid-19 period. The portfolio outcome

has remained 84% on track or exceeding over this time. The performance has varied though across areas, with top performances for the Cross-cutting & Covid and HIV grants. The majority of the AfIs fall within the desired programmatic performance and risk outlook zone.

Unitaid's portfolio has been facing continuous challenges (teething problems, the natural risks of clinical trials, lengthy process of WHO Research Ethics Review Committee (ERC)), and the Covid-19 related delays. Nevertheless, the level of Covid-19 disruption on the core activities has been decreased over time, showing the robust and resilient operating system of Unitaid and its partners.

The Board Members congratulated the Secretariat for the excellent, very comprehensive and clear presentation. Also, they recognized the high quality of grants' one pagers as a good way to present the direction & challenges of each project.

They valued Unitaid's work on diagnostics and therapeutics grants to address the Covid-19 crisis. The Board Members recognized the importance of UnitaidExplore and the work dedicated to global oxygen supplier's cooperation as very positive news. Above that, they also recalled the importance to preserve Unitaid's core activities. The Board noted the importance of the Prequalification (PQ) grant as a strategic cross cutting programme.

The Secretariat provided an overview of the strategic and operational KPIs for 2020. The reporting on the strategic KPIs included 9 grants totalling US\$314 million in value, and demonstrated strong performance against Innovation and Availability, Scalability and Impact. The Secretariat assured the Board that, although targets were not fully met in relation to the access barriers 'Affordability' and 'Demand and Adoption', significant progress has been made in these areas. The technologies are more affordable and adopted by countries than they would have been without Unitaid's intervention. In terms of the Operational KPIs, the overall performance in 2020 was generally good, while the net level of risk to Unitaid's operations remains at a higher level than pre-pandemic. The Board Members appreciated the good progress made against the KPI J – staff satisfaction, despite not meeting the target. The Secretariat acknowledged the suggestions related to the inclusion of additional indicators for measuring quality. The Board Members expressed support for a proposal to elevate KPIs to reflect an aggregated view at the AFI level for the next strategic period. The Secretariat noted that some of the operational KPIs did not apply to COVID-19 grants as they followed different processes, however, there is no difference in the approach used for the strategic KPIs.

Some of the Board Members expressed concerns on the need for adapting the KPI indicators based on the varying nature of the grants, to which the Secretariat reaffirmed it was already being done. The Secretariat also assured the Board Members that additional support and efforts were mobilized to ensure that projects disproportionately affected by COVID-19 disruptions remain on track.

14. List of participants

Executive Board Members and delegations

EXECUTIVE BOARD CHAIR

Marisol Touraine Email: tourainem@unitaid.who.int

Unitaid Board Chair

Catherine Dauphin Llorens Email: dauphinc@unitaid.who.int

Special Advisor to the Chair

Marlon Camps Email: campsm@unitaid.who.int

Advisor to the Chair

AFRICAN COUNTRIES

Abdellah Boutadghart Email: boutadghart@mission-maroc.ch

Deputy Permanent Representative

Permanent Mission of the Kingdom of Morocco

to the UN

Asmaa El Kamchi Email: elkamchi@mission-maroc.ch

First Secretary

Permanent mission of the Kingdom of Morocco

to the UN

Theophile Olivier Bosse Email: bossethophileolivier@yahoo.fr

Second Councellor

Permanent mission of Cameroon to the UN

Safiatou Diaz Simporé Email: safiatouosimpore@gmail.com

Focal Point

BRAZIL (Vice-Chair)

Maria Luisa Escorel de Moraes Email : <u>luisa.escorel@itamaraty.gov.br</u>

Ambassador, Deputy Permanent Representative

Permanent Mission of Brazil to the UN

Gerson Pereira Email: gerson.pereira@aids.gov.br

Director, Department of Surveillance and other

Communicable Diseases Ministry of Health

Igor Barbosa Email: igor.barbosa@itamaraty.gov.br

First Secretary

Permanent Mission of Brazil to the UN

Flavio Werneck Email : flavio.werneck@saude.gov.gr

Cabinet of the Minister of Health

Ministry of Health

Vitor Rocha Email: vitor.rocha@saude.gov.br

Ministry of Health

Sarah Fernandes Bayma Email : sarah.fernandes@saude.gov.br

Ministry of Health

Gustavo Neto Email: gustavo.neto@saude.gov.br

Ministry of Health

CHILE

Francisco Carvajal Email: fcarvajal@minrel.gob.cl

Counsellor, Global Health Affairs Permanent Mission of Chile to the UN

COMMUNITIES LIVING WITH THE DISEASES

Louis da Gama Email : ldagama@gmail.com

Public Health Adviser

Princess of Africa Foundation / Global Health

Advocates

Wim Vandevelde Email: wvandevelde@gnpplus.net

Liaison Officer

Global Network of People Living with HIV (GNP+)

Carol Nawina Email : carolnawina@gmail.com

Executive Director, CITAMplus, Zambia

Krystyna Rivera Email : k.rivera@network.org.ua

Network of PLHIV, Ukraine

Lucy Ghati Email: lghati@gmail.com

NEPHAK, Kenya

FOUNDATIONS (BILL & MELINDA GATES)

Greg Widmyer Email: greg.wydmyer@gatesfoundation.org

Director, Health Products, Programs, and

Markets

Global Delivery Programs, Global Development

Jessica Jones Email: jessica.jones@gatesfoundation.org

Associate Program Officer, Integrated Delivery

Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

Jamie Morris Email: jamie.morris@gatesfoundation.org

Divisional Chief Financial Officer - Global

Development and Global Growth & Opportunity

Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

FRANCE

Stéphanie Seydoux Email: stéphanie Seydoux@diplomatie.gouv.fr

Ambassador for Global Health

Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs

Joan Valadou Email: joan.valadou@diplomatie.gouv.fr

Assistant-Director, Human Development Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs

Jeanne Riqué Email: jeanne.rique@diplomatie.gouv.fr

UNITAID – Accès aux médicaments Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs

Anne-Sophie Monçeau Email: anne-

Chargée de mission with the sophie.monceau@diplomatie.gouv.fr
Ambassador for Global Health

Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs

Sana de Courcelles Email : sana.decourcelles@diplomatie.gouv.fr

Health Counsellor

Permanent mission of France to the UN

JAPAN (Temporary seat)

Keiichi Hara Email: keiichi.hara@mofa.go.jp

Deputy Assistant Minister
Deputy Director-General for Global Issues

International Cooperation Bureau

MOFA

Emi Inaoka

Deputy Director Email: emi.inaoka@mofa.go.jp

Special Assistant for Global Health Issues

Global Health Policy Division
International Cooperation Bureau

MOFA

Email: etsuko.matsunaga@mofa.go.jp

Etsuko Matsunaga

Deputy Director

Global Health Policy Division^ International Cooperation Bureau

MOFA

NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Rohit Malpani Email: romalpani@gmail.com

Health Action International

Javier Hourcade Bellocq Email: javier.bellocq@gmail.com

LAC Key Correspondent Team & Civil Society

Sustainability Network

Courtenay Howe

Liaison officer Stop Aids UK

Email: courtenay@stopaids.org.uk

Elena Villanueva

Barcelona Institute for Global Health (ISGlobal)

Email: elenavillanuevaolivo@gmail.com

Lynette Mabote

Key Advisor, SARPAM

Email: lynette@sarpam.net

Philip Waweru Mbugua

Executive Director, NOPE

Email: pmbugua@nope.or.ke

Fifa Rahman

Health Poverty Action

Email: fifarahman@icloud.com

Mohga Kamal-Yanni

People's Vaccine

Email: mohgaky@access2healthcare.net

Email: Haitham.Ali.Ahmed.El-noush@norad.no

Sharonann Lynch

MSF

Email: sharonann.lynch@gmail.com

Morgane Ahmar

ITPC

Email: mahmar@itpcglobal.org

Thiru Balasubramaniam

KFI

Email: thiru@keionline.org

Norway

Senior Adviser

Global Health Section

Norwegian Agency for Development Cooperation

Haitham El-Noush

Republic of Korea

Email: ymcho95@mofa.go.kr Yeong-Moo Cho

Director General for Development Cooperation

Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Email: hsshin02@mofa.go.kr

Heesun Shin Counsellor

Permanent Mission of the Republic of Korea

Taejin Kim Email: tjkim19@mofa.go.kr

Political Attache

Permanent Mission of the Republic of Korea

SPAIN

Ander Ruiz de Gopegui Aramburu

Counsellor

Permanent mission of Spain to the UN

Email: miguel.casado@maec.es

Email: ander.ruizdegopegui@maec.es

Head of health team Ministry of Foreign Affairs

Miguel Casado Gómez

UNITED KINGDOM

James Droop Email: james.droop@fcdo.gov.uk

Senior Adviser, Global Funds Department Department for International Development

FCDO

Sarah Dabbaj Email: sarah.dabbaj@fcdo.gov.uk

Global Funds Department

FCDO

Megan Crawley Email: megan.crawley@fcdo.gov.uk

Programme Manager, Family Planning and Market Shaping Team, Global Funds Department Department for International Development,

FCDO

WHO

Ren Minghui Email: renm@who.int

Assistant Director-General

Universal Health Coverage/Communicable and

Noncommunicable Diseases Email: <u>mattai@who.int</u>

Issa Matta

Senior Legal Officer

Email: carrr@who.int

Richard Carr

Director, Office of Internal Oversight Services

Proposal Review Committee

Andy Gray Email: graya1@ukzn.ac.za

Chair PRC

SECRETARIAT	
Vincent Bretin	Email: bretinv@unitaid.who.int
Director of Results	
David Curry	Email: curryd@unitaid.who.int
Director of Finance and Administration	
Philippe Duneton	Email: dunetonp@unitaid.who.int
Executive Director	
Janet Ginnard	Email: ginnardj@unitaid.who.int
Director of Strategy	
Sonia Hilton	Email: hiltons@unitaid.who.int
Senior Legal Officer	
Oksana Koval	Email: kovalo@unitaid.who.int
Governance Officer	
Ross Leach	Email: leachr@unitaid.who.int
Value for Money Manager	
Robert Matiru	Email: matirur@unitaid.who.int
Director of Operations	
Eva Nathanson	Email: nathanson@unitaid.who.int
Senior Programme Manager	
Martins Pavelsons	Email: pavesonsm@unitaid.who.int
Governance Manager	Zilidii i <u>pavesorisine aintararwiointe</u>
Tim Ryan	Email: ryant@unitaid.who.int
Coordinator, Executive Office, a.i.	Email: Tyante amedia.wno.me
Risk, Information and Knowledge Management	
Hervé Verhoosel	Email: verhooselh@unitaid.who.int
Director External Relations & Communications	
a.i.	
-	